
 
 

 
 

SPECIAL/JOINT MEETING AGENDA 
~CITY COUNCIL AND PLANNING COMMISSION~ 

March 28, 2005 at 7:30 PM 
Police/Fire Training Facility 
4850 John R, Troy, Michigan 

(248) 457-4841 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 

City Council:     Planning Commission: 
 

Mayor Louise Schilling    
Robin Beltramini     
Cristina Broomfield    

 

David Eisenbacher  
Martin F. Howrylak 
Dave Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 
 
 
 

[1] Options for Regulating Attached Garages, a
  
 Break 
  
[2] Options for Regulating Commercial Vehicles
  
 Public Comment 
  
 Adjourn 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
John Szerlag, City Manager 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effe
Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us <mailto:
of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accom
 

  
  
  

Gary Chamberlain
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Larry Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Fazlullah M. Khan 
Thomas Strat 
Mark Vleck 
David Waller 
Wayne C. Wright 
Howard Wu 
nd Accessory Structures 7:30 – 8:45 PM 
 
8:45 – 8:55 PM 
 

 8:55 – 10:15 PM
 
 
 
 

ctive participation in this meeting should contact the City 
clerk@ci.troy.mi.us> at least two working days in advance 
modations. 



Date: March 23, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark Stimac, Building and Zoning Director 
 Mark Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

(ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, 
pertaining to Accessory Buildings and Definitions and Provisions –
Joint City Council and Planning Commission Special Meeting 
March 28, 2005 

 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
City Council adopted a resolution at the December 6, 2004 meeting that referred 
this item back to the Planning Commission, with the desire to quickly resolve the 
large attached garage issue within the zoning ordinance.  The specific issues 
identified in City Council’s resolution include garage door height, number of 
detached buildings, greenhouses and footprint ratios of attached accessory 
structures.  It appears that both the Planning Commission and City Management 
agree to a foot print ratio of 75% and therefore, garage door heights are at issue.  
The desired outcome of this Joint Meeting is to find common interests and 
determine the appropriate zoning ordinance amendments that address the 
following issues: 
 

• Foot print ratio of accessory structures 
• Accessory structure/garage door maximum height 

 
The Planning Commission has developed a consensus regarding the issues 
related to greenhouses and the number of detached buildings.   Eventually, the 
Planning Commission will have to conduct a public hearing and submit a 
recommendation to City Council. 
 
City Council scheduled a joint meeting with the Planning Commission.  The 
purpose is to identify the interests of City Council and provide direction to both 
the Planning Commission and City Management.  These interests will be used in 
the process of formulating a proposed ZOTA 215-A that addresses size and 
footprint of accessory structures, garage door heights and related issues.  An 
interest-based approach will utilize John Szerlag, City Manager, as a moderator 
and Peggy Clifton, Human Resource Director, as the moderator’s assistant.  
Then City Council, Planning Commission and City Management will provide input 



through this approach.  City Management will be represented by Nino Licari, City 
Assessor; Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director; Mark Stimac, 
Building and Zoning Director; and Mark F. Miller, Planning Director. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In response to the construction of a large attached accessory structure, City 
Council adopted a resolution on October 4, 2004 which authorized the Planning 
Commission and City Management to address accessory structures and 
neighborhood compatibility within the R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts, 
addressing size, use and compatibility.  City Council requested that the Planning 
Commission forward a recommendation to City Council in the fastest time period 
possible.  City Management developed an operational definition of compatibility 
as an issue related to size and use of accessory structures.  Therefore, 
compatibility of accessory structures was addressed in proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendments, through the traditional regulatory methods:  height, 
size, setbacks and use. 
 
City Management engaged Richard Carlisle, City Planning Consultant, to assist in 
preparing the zoning ordinance text amendments.  Mr. Carlisle prepared an initial 
draft that served as a working draft for City Management and the Planning 
Commission.  This item was discussed at the October 26, 2004 and November 2, 
2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meetings.  City Management 
recommended dividing ZOTA 215 into three separate items to be considered 
separately but concurrently.  These items are Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions (ZOTA 215-A), Commercial Vehicle Definitions (ZOTA 215-B), and 
Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals (ZOTA 215-C).  The Planning Commission 
held a public hearing on the three separate items on November 9, 2004, and 
recommended approval of ZOTA 215-A (Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions).  Furthermore, the Planning Commission tabled ZOTA 215-B and ZOTA 
215-C to provide additional time for further review.  
 
On December 6, 2004, City Council conducted a pubic hearing regarding ZOTA 
215-A, accessory buildings and definitions.  Both City Management and the 
Planning Commission submitted a recommended ZOTA 215-A.   The two proposed 
versions of ZOTA 215-A were identical, with one exception.  The Planning 
Commission’s version included a maximum garage door height restriction of eight 
(8) feet.  
 
City Council adopted a resolution at the December 6, 2004 public hearing that 
referred ZOTA 215-A back to the Planning Commission.  The resolution referenced 
specific consideration to; “garage door height, foot print ratios, further rationale of 
the number of detached buildings, and that staff make the changes as requested in 
regard to greenhouses.” 



The Planning Commission discussed ZOTA’s 215-A, B and C at the following 
special/study meetings: January 1, 2005; January 25, 2005; February 22, 2005 
and March 1, 2005.  At the February 22, 2005 Planning Commission 
special/study meeting, John Szerlag, City Manager, moderated an interest-based 
approach to identify the interests of both the Planning Commission and City 
Management in relation to accessory structures/garage door heights.  A Planning 
Commission majority maintained the opinion that an 8-foot height limit should be 
included in a recommendation to City Council, while City Management 
maintained the opinion that there should not be a specific limit on accessory 
structures/garage door heights.  The purpose of the study session was to identify 
interests and further determine if there could be a unified recommendation.  
Unfortunately, a unified recommendation was not formulated.   
 
In addition the Planning Commission conducted public hearings at the following 
regular meetings:  February 8, 2005 and March 8, 2005.  The Planning 
Commission has not adopted a recommended ZOTA 215-A, B or C.  
 
 
SUMMARY OF ZOTA 215-A 
 
The proposed ZOTA reorganizes the existing text and improves the definitions, 
which helps with clarification.  The proposed text restricts the size of attached 
accessory buildings to 75% of the ground floor living area or six hundred square 
feet, whichever is greater.  This is a reasonable approach to limiting the size of 
attached accessory structures, as the minimum 600 square foot size is equivalent 
to a 2-½ car garage.   
 
Detached accessory structures are limited to no more than two per parcel and are 
further limited in area to 450 square feet plus two percent of the lot area.  The 
combined floor area of all detached accessory structures shall not exceed the 
ground floor footprint of the living area of the dwelling or 600 square feet, whichever 
is greater.  City Management and the Planning Commission finds this to be a 
reasonable restriction on detached accessory buildings, as the minimum size of 
600 square feet provides for a 2-½ car garage. 
 
A new category of building called accessory supplemental buildings was created to 
provide regulations on buildings used for hobby or recreational purposes.  The 
provisions restrict the number to three, and total size not to exceed 200 square feet 
of accessory supplemental buildings.  The area of accessory supplemental 
buildings is counted toward the total area of detached accessory buildings. 
 
The Planning Commission’s initial recommendation for both attached and detached 
accessory buildings restricted the maximum door height to eight (8) feet.  City 
Management found this to be unnecessarily restrictive.  For example, a recreational 
vehicle owner who can legally park a vehicle within an accessory building may be 
required to request a variance from the door height requirement from the BZA.  



Attachments: 
1. Interest based discussion, February 22, 2005, Planning Commission meeting 
2. Vehicle height comparisons 
3. Garage size in relation to house size (by percentage) 
4. Regulation of garage height and setbacks in neighboring communities 
5. Regulation of garage size in neighboring communities 
6. City Council minutes, December 6, 2004 
7. Summary of comments, City Council meeting, December 6, 2004 
 
 
Prepared by Mark F. Miller 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\Joint CC & PC meeting .doc 
 
 



February 22, 2005 Planning Commission Meeting 
Interest Based Discussion 

ZOTA 215-A Garage Door Heights 
 

Planning Commission City Management 
 

City Council 
 

   
Preserve residential 
character/neighborhood compatibility. 

Consistency of the Zoning Ordinance, it 
is legal to park commercial vehicles in 
garages. 

Zoning Ordinance permits commercial 
vehicles indoors in residential areas.  
City does not regulate garage door 
heights. 

Board of Zoning Appeals approval of 
garage doors greater than 8 ft. in height, 
including a public hearing for 
neighborhood notification. 

An 8 ft. garage door height limitation 
creates a practical difficulty, but the 
Board of Zoning Appeals does not have 
standards to approve a variance.  The 
variance should be based upon unique 
characteristics of property. 

Recreational vehicles are permitted on 
residential properties, inside and outside.

Storage of commercial vehicles and 
materials in residential areas. 

Neighborhood compatibility with the 
Zoning Ordinance limitations. 

City Council resolution to Planning 
Commission cited garage door heights. 

ZOTA 215 A, B and C be considered for 
approval as a package of amendments. 

If door heights are regulated, the 
structure can be built without a door, but 
includes an opening. 

Outdoor storage of vehicles in M-1 Light 
Industrial Zoning District includes 
potentially 500 spaces. 

7 ft. garage doors are the standard 
residential garage doors. 

Concerning ZOTA 215 A, B and C 
package; commercial vehicle definitions 
amendment will be difficult to find 
consensus, therefore difficult to approve.  
For this reason, City Management 
recommended dividing the ZOTA into 
three amendments. 

 

Minority Opinion   
Hard to enforce    
Forcing out labor class and there is a 
need for them. 

  

10 ft. for recreational vehicles (although 
research shows 12 ft. is needed). 

  

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\PC CC CM Interests_table.doc 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department 
Source: Manufacturers Websites 
 

1

VEHICLE HEIGHT COMPARISONS 
 
Class A Motor Homes 
Year / Make / Model Exterior Height 
2005 Winnebago Journey 32T 11’7” 
2005 Winnebago Vectra 36RD 11’8” 
2005 Winnebago Adventurer 33V 11’5” – 11’8” 
2005 Winnebago Sightseer 29R 12’1” 
2005 Winnebago Voyage 31W 12’2” – 12’3” 
2005 Gulfstream Crescendo 8356 11’10” 
2005 Gulfstream Independence 8320 11’10” 
2005 Gulfstream Endura 6316 11’10.5” 
2005 Georgie Boy Bellagio 3750 DS 12’1” 
2005 Georgie Boy Landau 2450 DS 11’6” 
 
Class C Motor Homes 
Year / Make / Model Exterior Height 
2005 Winnebago Aspect 23D 7’11.2” 
2005 Winnebago Winnie 27P 11’8” 
2005 Winnebago Minnie Winnie 11’8” 
2005 Gulfstream Endura 6316 11’10.5” 
2005 Gulfstream Conquest 6211 11’4” 
2005 Coachmen Santana C 293 DS 11’2” 
2005 Coachmen Concord 225 RK 10’3” 
 
Travel Trailers 
Year / Make / Model Exterior Height 
2005 Coachmen Captiva 249QRBG 9’2” 
2005 Coachmen Cascade 9’4” – 10’2” 
 
5th Wheel Trailers 
Year / Make / Model Exterior Height 
2005 Coachmen Adrenaline XLV  12’3” 
2005 Coachmen Somerset (all) 12’2” 
2005 Coachmen Chaparral FW (all) 11’6” – 11’8” 
 
 
 
 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department 
Source: Manufacturers Websites 
 

2

SUV’s/Vans/Trucks 
Year / Make / Model Height 
2005 Hummer H-1 77” (6.42’) 
2005 Hummer H-2 79.2” (6.6’) With rack: 81.7” (6.8’) 
2005 Hummer H-3 81.7” (6.8’) 
2005 GMC Savannah/Cargo 82” (6.83’) 
2005 Dodge Sprinter/Passenger 93.1” (7.75’) 
2005 Dodge Ram 74” (6.17’) 
2005 Ford Excursion 76.6” (6.38’) 
2005 Ford F-250 76.5” (6.38’) 
2005 Ford F-350 76.7” (6.39’) 
2005 Ford E-150 81.2” (6.77’) 
2005 Ford E-350 84.6” (7.05’) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\Vehicle Height Table 02 03 05.doc 





REGULATION OF GARAGE HEIGHT AND SETBACKS IN 
NEIGHBORING COMMUNITES 

 
 

City Are Garage 
doors 

regulated in 
the Zoning 
Ordinance 

Garage Height and Setback Regulations  
 

   
Royal Oak No Max ht with 3‘ setback from property line 13’ Mid Pt 

Max ht with 5’ setback from property line 15’ Mid Pt 
Auburn Hills No Attached Max. Ht. 25’ Mid Pt 

Detached Max. Ht. 14’ Mid Pt. 
Sterling Heights No Attached 25’ Mid Pt 

Detached 15’ Mid Pt (rear yard only) 
Southfield No Attached Max.25’ Mid Pt  

Detached Max.15’ Mid Pt  
Clinton Twp No Attached Max. Ht. 14’ Mid Pt. 

Detached Max. Ht. 35’ Mid Pt. 
Grand Rapids No Attached Max. Ht. 35,Mid pt. 

Detached Max. Ht. 14’ 
Farmington Hills No Attached Max. Ht. 30’ Mid Pt. 

Detached Max. Ht. 14’ Mid Pt. 
Ann Arbor No Attached Max. Ht. 14’ Mid Pt. 

Detached Max. Ht. 21’ Mid Pt.  
Birmingham No Garage width can not exceed 50% of house width 

Max. Width of garage dr. 8’, 2 car garage 8’ ea. dr. 
separated 
Detached 2 car garage can be 16’ wide 
Max. Bldg. Ht. 22’ to highest pt. 

Bloomfield No Attached Max. Ht. 30’ to Mid Pt. 30% lot coverage 
Detached. Cannot exceed 50% of house floor area, 
Max. Ht. 14’ Mid Pt. Ask for comments from home 
owners association. Rear yard only 

West Bloomfield No Attached 35’ Mid Pt. 
Detached 16’ Mid Pt.  

Rochester Hills No Attached Max. Ht. 25’ 
Detached Ht. 14’ 

 
Note:  No Communities contacted regulated garage door height. 
 
Source:  Telephone Calls to Communities 2/21/05 and 3/2/05 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\other communities garage ht reg.doc 



REGULATION OF GARAGE SIZE IN 
NEIGHBORING COMMUNITES 

 
City Garage Area Regulations 

Royal Oak Both Detached & Attached:  10% of lot area, not to exceed 800 s.f., limit of one detached 
accessory building per lot (cannot have detached garage and shed) 

Auburn Hills Attached:  Subject to yard regulations 
Detached:  Rear yard only 
Both Detached & Attached:  Cannot exceed ground floor area of main building and 
cannot occupy more than 25% of a required rear yard plus 20% of any non-required rear 
yard 

Sterling Heights Attached:  Must meet setbacks and lot coverage, no size restrictions  
Detached:  Lots of ¼ ac. or less only one garage, attached or detached, is permitted and 
cannot exceed 700 s.f.,  
Lots of more than ¼ ac. and less than ½ ac. not more than 2 garages permitted and total 
sq. footage of all detached accessory bldgs. cannot exceed 1000 s.f. 
Lots ½ ac. or more for each additional ¼ acre or portion thereof  an additional 200 s.f. of 
accessory bldg. shall be permitted total sq. footage of all detached accessory bldgs. shall 
not exceed 2000 sq. ft. 
Cannot exceed lot coverage requirements 

Southfield Both Detached & Attached:  total floor area of all accessory buildings on any parcel shall 
not exceed 10% of lot OR the gross floor area of ground floor of principal bldg. whichever 
is less 

Clinton Twp. Attached:  Must meet setbacks and lot coverage, no size restrictions 
Detached:  Rear yard only, cannot exceed 650 s.f. OR 50% of floor area of principal 
dwelling OR 2% of lot area, whichever is greater and cannot exceed 25% of rear yard, 
the total combined floor area of all detached accessory bldgs. cannot exceed 2500 s.f. 

Grand Rapids Both Detached & Attached:  Lot 11,000 s.f. or less 624 s.f. max., Lots 11,000 to 22,000 
s.f. 832 s.f. max., and lots greater than 22,000 1200 s.f. max. 

Farmington Hills Both Detached & Attached:  Combined floor area cannot exceed 60% of the ground floor 
area of the house OR 750 s.f. whichever is larger 

Ann Arbor Attached:  Must meet setbacks and lot coverage, no size restrictions 
Detached:  Rear yard only, min. 3 ft. from side and rear lot lines, cannot exceed 35% of 
req’d rear open space 

Birmingham Attached:  No size restrictions , must meet 30% footprint requirement and must meet 
req’d setbacks 
Detached:  Rear yard only, at least 3 ft. from any lot line, the lesser of 10% of the lot area 
or 750 s.f. (total for all detached structures) 

Bloomfield Twp. Attached:   No size restrictions, must meet setbacks and lot coverage 
Detached:  Rear yard only, cannot exceed 50% of the ground floor area of the main bldg. 
and cannot occupy more than 25% of a required rear yard  plus 20% of any non-required 
rear yard, min. 16 ft. setback from side and rear lot line,  

West Bloomfield 
Twp. 

Attached:   No size restrictions, must meet setbacks and lot coverage 
Detached:  Up to 600 s.f. OR ½ of 1st floor area whichever is greater  

Rochester Hills Attached:  Cannot exceed 100% of the 1st floor living area 
Detached:  Cannot exceed 25% of rear yard, On lots < 2 ac accessory structures cannot 
exceed a total area of 720 s.f.;  On lots 2ac and larger accessory structures are 
permitted an additional 200 s.f. per additional acre or fraction thereof provided the total  
shall not exceed the floor area of the main building or 1520 s.f. whichever is less. 

Livonia Both Attached & Detached:  on properties of < ½ ac. max. 660 s.f. and cannot exceed 
req’d lot coverage;  on properties of  ½ ac. or larger max. 720 s.f. and cannot exceed 
req’d  lot coverage, if there are no other accessory structures on the property and where 
and all lot coverage and yard requirements are met then attached garages can go to 900 
s.f. 

 
Source:  Telephone Calls to Communities 3-18-05 G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\other communities garage size reg.doc 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final December 6, 2004 
 
 
C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and 

Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions 
and Provisions  

 
Resolution #2004-12-611 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 
and Articles 40.55.00-40-59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions, be REFERRED to the Planning Commission for further discussions, with 
specific consideration given to the garage door height, foot print ratios, further rational of 
the number of detached buildings, and that staff make the changes as requested in 
regard to greenhouses. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\12-06-04 CC Minutes Excerpt.doc 
 
 



City Council and Public Comments re: ZOTA 215A – Accessory Structures 
City Council Meeting - Monday, 12/6/05 
Prepared by L. Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
Note: These are not verbatim of minutes.  The purpose of this document is to provide a 
summary of the general discussion that took place. 
 
8:12 PM Presentations by Miller, Stimac  
 
DE: Will last section create non-conformance among existing buildings? 
MS: Yes, would be legal non-conforming. 
 
Stine: Question about # of detached structures on a parcel 
MS: Up to 5 
Stine: Rationale for not addressing height of garage door? 
Stimac: Concern over legal recreation vehicle conflicting with door size (legal to store on 
site, but precluded from parking in doors) 
Stine: Can’t we put a limit on the size of the door?  Like a 10 ft limit; I just don’t want to 
see a 14 ft height.  I think a 10 ft door would accommodate anything. 
 
8:37 to 8:40 PM: Presentation by Carlisle 
 
LS: Inquiry re: practicality of such an ordinance given varying house types and styles in 
City.  The requirements have been drafted re:  

1. Size of lot 
2. Footprint of home 

 
No matter what, entitled to 600 sq ft 
 
Stine: re: input personally received from residents –  

1) Limiting garage to half size of ground floor living area is extremely restrictive; why 
not go to 100% size of house? 

 
DE: Re: 450 sq ft plus 2% total lot area – what about houses with bonus room on top of 
garage?  
MS: House height for attached garage 
DE: How is the footprint for living area calculated?  A 3000 sq ft ranch vs. a Colonial 
with living area – 3 level 
MS: Footprint for living area (where living space contacts ground) = footprint 
“Outside wall to outside wall” where it is attached to the ground 
 
CB: re: the 2% to add on, what does it include? 
MS: The total of all accessory buildings cannot exceed footprint of living structures 
 
RB: re: 1 vs. 2 stories – “ground floor footprint of living area” is confusing language 
MS: our concern was what to include; i.e., a 2nd floor that overhangs a garage 



MM: At Planning Commission, they did not want to include basements…that is why we 
use the term “living area” 
 
DL: half of my living area is below ground; half is above – what part is included in living 
area? 
MS: provides bldg code definition of basement 
 
CB: What is the reason behind looking at footprint of house? 
3,000 sq ft ranch vs. 3,000 sq ft colonial 
Seems backward – ranch takes more space 
MS: re: massing of structures on site – trying to match overall site accessory bldg to 
main building 
 
CB: Why are we limiting # if accessory buildings on site now? 
MS: it is relatively rare to see someone propose more than 2 
No, not every bldg will be compliant and not every request will comply; but we believe 
the proposed changes will accommodate most;  
And if requests do exceed, there is always the ZBA option 
 
DE: re: hardship to getting a variance –  
Example: family with 7 drivers and 7 vehicles – would that be considered a hardship for 
a variance? 
MS: It could – (mentions house size requirements, too – larger family, larger house) 
 
9:03 PM – Public Hearing – 4 people signed up to speak 
 
RICHARD MINNICK 
 By simply redefining Attached Structure…I think hundreds of homes will become 

non-conforming (references photos he submitted) – I don’t think passing them 
[photos] on the street that they look non-conforming 

 Concern b/c it imposes restrictions on what I can do in the future and possible 
negative impact on re-sale value 

 It is more fair to base it on total sq ft 
 I question how you can really tell size; discriminates against colonials and homes 

that do not have a basement (i.e. no storage so have to use garage for storage of 
mechanical equipment, etc.) 

 Another unintended consequence is that people build more detached  - this is not 
as aesthetically pleasing 

 The definition of attached accessory bldg seems to be ambiguous 
o What if it is heated, etc? Then not classified as attached access. Structure 

 Proposed size much too restrictive 
 
RICHARD HUGHES 
 Comment re: limiting public comment time 
 Send this back to the Planning Commission; let them take 6 months to 1 yr to 

decide 



 I did not see anyone on Planning Commission who wanted to bring this to City 
Council now. 

 Accessory buildings are not attached buildings; should be called “addition 
attached” 

 Let Planning Commission work on this for 6 months 
 
VICTOR LENIVOV 
 This is unreasonable 
 Discriminates against old subs, larger lots; will not impact homes built in last 40 

yrs 
 Will impact 1-2 acre lots 
 Don’t discriminate against small businesses – allow for some commercial use 

with size limit 
 
TOM KRENT 

1) Object to size limitation – too restrictive; references photos submitted 
2) Do not restrict garage door height to 8 ft; make a 10 ft door limit 
 
References his packet of suggestions – use and compatibility issues; have Planning 
Commission review before Bldg Dept can approve  
>>> Issue of incorporating businesses into residential areas – Planning Commission 
must review 
 
9:24 PM 10-minute recess 
 
COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
 
RB: 3 concerns 
1) With attached structures I agree with the Planning Commission that there should 

be some height restriction on the door 
1. 12’ and 14’ doors are not normal residential doors 
2. We should craft language for the most “usual” circumstances 
3. I propose that in C, on page 4 – “shall not exceed 10 feet.” 

2) 405602 
 Uncomfortable including greenhouse in this section b/c it was defined as an 

accessory supplemental building – should be stricken and put in 405603 
3) Re: # of buildings and Lenivov’s concern – we should craft the ordinance for the 

most 
 “usual” circumstances (re: lot size); however, we should ask the Planning 

Commission to  some ratio; i.e., ½ for a ranch; 1 1/3 for a split level, etc. 
 
     Stine: Concur with Beltramini’s suggestions 
 
     LS:  Concerns about: 
 

1) Neighborhood Notification: but got question answered by staff;  



ZBA  requirements cover notification 
 

2)  How does this fit in with current and future homes and lots in Troy?  We are 
 considering it carefully so that it will work best for everyone. 
Stine: If it is being returned to Planning Commission, I ask that Krent’s material 
be given to them. 
 
DE: Generally speaking existing buildings with large garages, none of those 
previous ones were a problem (same size as house).  The new garage that is 6-
8Xs bigger than the house was the problem. 
I think we should be roughly1.5Xs the living area of the dwelling with 
requirements for matching [materials] because pre-fabricated materials generally 
do not match the house where virtually all existing large garages do match the 
home with the exception of the one new one. 
And, as several people have said, with home businesses on the rise, not just with 
large commercial vehicles, but with having a pick-up truck an everyday vehicle, 
or families with multiple vehicles, car collectors,  
I’d like to see us look at 1.5 to 2Xs the living area of the dwelling. 
 
As far as the garage door – 10’ may be too restrictive for some vehicles on the 
market – sites new pickup truck vehicle being marketed – I have some 
information from Mark Vleck re: conversion vans.  I am thinking more along the 
12’ guideline. I do not want to make an owner of a legal vehicle have to get a 
variance as a course of action for owning a readily available vehicle. 
 
[MS calls on DL] 
 
DL: I would concur with the comments that have been made up to this point with 
a couple exceptions. 
Garage door height is something I am concerned with as well – want to look at 
10, 11 or 12’ – at what would be appropriate with the predominant vehicles on 
the market today. 
 
The 2nd concern I have is that when we originally went to Planning Commission 
and staff to address the issue of the garage on Alpine; I wanted to make sure we 
were preparing a narrowly crafted ordinance to address that situation…not going 
on a fishing expedition to manage any other potential problems that might be out 
there; so I do have concerns that the limits on accessory supplemental buildings 
needs to be on this at this time – at the speed at which we would like to address 
this issue. 
 
MS: I should indicate as a follow-up to your statement that we do not craft an 
ordinance based on one situation.  It should apply to the whole community.  The 
one situation did alert us to something we want to look at….we do need to be 
cognizant of the fact that ordinance changes should meet the standard of 
applying to the majority of the community; we do have the BZA for appeals.  The 



Planning Commission and the staff did a good job in working on the things we 
wanted to look at.  I was hopeful we could vote tonight; however, with 2 council 
members not present and with the suggestions given tonight …I am looking for a 
resolution from one of the Council Members.  RB makes motion: 
 

 
 
Resolution #2004-12-611 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 
and Articles 40.55.00-40-59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions, be REFERRED to the Planning Commission for further discussions, with 
specific consideration given to the garage door height, foot print ratios, further rational of 
the number of detached buildings, and that staff make the changes as requested in 
regard to greenhouses. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak  
 
Timeframe discussed – agreed that the issue would be brought back “in February.” 
 
Szerlag: For clarification – all comments made by City Council and the ones from the 
audience be put in synopsis and sent to the Planning Commission. 
 
What will also be helpful is to have a sense what ratio is preferred –  
RB: I believe there is some documentation on what is aesthetically pleasing and I would 
start there.  What is aesthetically pleasing; an aesthetically pleasing ratio – start with 
looking at floor plans of some homes, sample subdivisions – I believe Mark Stimac has 
those – that is where I would start and see what is reasonable and aesthetic. 
 
Szerlag: What we can also do is computer generate how the actual ratios would look for 
a Colonial and a Ranch. 
 
DE: I think the ratio has a lot to do with the width and how much you see.  Being double 
deep and looking just like the house looks very different than one that is 6 cars wide.  
The layout ties into this. 
 
MS: We are looking at what has already been built in Troy but also look at what will be 
built in the future.  We need to be cognizant of all of that.  And, I am sure the Planning 
Commission was.  When it is passed, it should be practical for use and that is our goal 
here tonight.   
 



Stine: There is one thing that bothers me and I do not know how you address it – that is, 
how you can make it “bulkier,” rather than a long extension – if there is a way to leave a 
greater area in the backyard.  A greater ratio of open space rather than extending far 
into the backyard and not having the bulk up front.  I do not know how to explain what I 
mean… 
 
LS: has to do with the design and the yard and the architecture itself… 
 
Called the question on the above resolution 
Moved onto next item. 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\cc & public comments re zota 215 12-6-05.doc 
 
 



DATE:   March 22, 2005 
  
 

TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Douglas Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
   Mark Miller, Planning Director 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 

SUBJECT:  Options on Commercial Vehicles for Discussion  
   Joint City Council/Planning Commission Meeting 
 
 
One of the topics proposed for the joint meeting between the City Council and the 
Planning Commission on March 28, 2005, are revisions to the Zoning Ordinance 
provisions as they relate to the storage of commercial vehicles on residential 
property.  There are a number of options or directions that could be discussed.  
Among the options are: 

• Make no changes from the current text 
• Transfer the authority of appeals on commercial vehicle storage to the Board 

of Zoning Appeals 
• Modify criteria for approving variances requiring all four of the conditions be 

met 
• Move the provisions for the storage of commercial vehicles out of the Zoning 

Ordinance and into a separate “police power” ordinance, similar to Chapter 
48 Litter and Chapter 88 Nuisances 

• Allow administrative approvals of renewals of commercial vehicle variances 
• Eliminate the ability for appeals of the commercial vehicle storage provisions 
• Change the definition of commercial vehicles 
• Restrict indoor storage of commercial vehicles 

 
These options may be developed individually or in some combination.  Attached is 
a thorough history of the past actions that have led to the current text of the 
Zoning Ordinance relating to commercial vehicles, prepared by the City Attorney’s 
office.  With the use of the interest based approach to problem solving that you 
propose to facilitate at the meeting, we hope to receive some direction on which of 
the options to proceed with so that the staff and Planning Commission can proceed 
with the steps necessary for implementation. 
 
 
Attachment: Commercial Vehicle Zoning Ordinance History  
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 






























































































